The Nature and Significance of the Divine Qualities



Steve Beckow Editor-in-Chief Golden Age of Gaia

Vancouver: Golden Age of Gaia, 2022

Copyright declined. Please copy freely.

Table of Contents

Introduction	3
What are the Divine Qualities?	7
Questioner: What are the divine qualities (or blessings and virtues)?	8
Q: What is their significance?	8
Q: How do the divine qualities fit into the Mother's Plan for the Ascension of Gaia?8	
Q: Where do the divine qualities or blessings and virtues come from?	9
The Universal Laws and the Divine Qualities	11
Q: What is the relation of the universal laws to the divine qualities?	12
Q: I've heard it said that the divine qualities are all simply forms of love. What is don't understand about love that makes that so?	it I 13
Q: How can love, create, preserve, and destroy? How can it, at the same time, be thing created, preserved, and destroyed?	e the 13
Working with the Divine Qualities	16
Q: How do I achieve divine qualities like balance and grace?	17
Q: How do we work with the divine qualities?	17
Q: It seems like there are a million and three interpretations of these laws and value	lues.
Q: When you explained what happened to me in the heart opening on March 13 you said I had created spaciousness. Can you explain "spaciousness" please?	, 2015, 18
Q: How do the divine qualities fit into social action. Can you give us an example?18	
The Divine Qualities and Relationship	21
Q: How is all this affecting relationships?	22
Q: What might we practice in our relationships to bring them more into alignment the divine qualities?	nt with 22
Living from the Divine Qualities	24
Q: Can you tell me some of the benefits of living from the divine qualities?	25
Q: What do you want from lightworkers in regards to the divine qualities?	25
Applying the Divine Qualities	28
Q: Current enlightenment thinking is that a human being is only capable of mast one of the divine qualities in a lifetime. Is that correct?	ering 29
Q: How do we relate to those committing acts of violence and extremism and st with the divine qualities?	ill align 29

Introduction



It's a pretty sure bet that this little booklet is going to expand over time. You might regard this as a placeholder.

My interest in the subject of the divine qualities just grows and grows. Each new spiritual experience demonstrates how wonderful love is or how absorbing bliss is.

Clearly these experiences are native to the vibratory range of the higher dimensions. (1) Clearly as well, it'd be very difficult for us to experience them in the Third/Fourth Dimension without temporarily rising to their level.

Looking back on my history, I have to confess that I was no friend to the divine qualities in my younger years. Granted that I always stayed within the straight and narrow, I was a grumpy old man by 21.

"Bah! Humbug!" would have come easily to my mind, if not my lips. I was dissociated until age 58 as a result of domestic abuse so there was a public and a private persona who did not know each other.

No chance of evolution here.

The blog records my journey back from dissociation and hatred. It took decades to discover what was happening and then complete the early childhood trauma behind it.

My Mother radiated the divine qualities. If I had any knowledge of them, it came from her and her example. I never felt anything but loved by my Mother.

But my treatment as a child from my Dad did not make me a friend of the divine qualities.

My awakening has been gradual in the sense that each new spiritual experience chipped away at the troll-under-the-bridge constructed self.

The more I explored love, bliss, and ecstasy, or innocence, purity, and abundance, the more I became mesmerized by these states. They are more than mystifying and certainly irresistible.

Take only bliss. While in bliss, we see everything as perfect. We have all we want. The only thing that proves better is ecstasy, which is probably a deeper level of bliss.

There's no way to describe any of them using Third-Dimensional language ... which ... is all we have. Telepathically, I'd imagine it'd be easy. Just not with language created with a materialistic focus.

One can only say what their effect is. But, even there, we run out of superlatives - exquisite, fulfilling, beyond imagination.

Living from the divine qualities carries a risk of separating oneself from the herd, as many social innovations do. If one sets out on the path of living only from them, one risks high expectations, fact-checking, criticism, ridicule. One walks the skinny branches.

Of our situation, enlightened psychologist John Enright used to say, if you want to get to Hero from here, you have to go through either Villain or Saint. I guess this is the road via Saint.

But it feels so good. No. Way beyond good. Unbelievable.

I wouldn't know to choose it if I hadn't sampled some of the ware and found it beyond delicious. I'd probably ask what the buzz was all about.

The divine qualities are like a baseball and the universal laws are like the glove. Both together make a baseball game possible. Neither replaces the other; they both complement each other; and taken together they allow us to play.

Likewise, the divine qualities are what we aim for and the universal laws the chief means of unveiling them - "unveiling" because they're already here. Taken together, we have an approach to life that will, I predict, reward us more each day. Or has rewarded me.

I'm enrolled. I want to play this game. Count me in.

Let this be today's experiment in "my life as a workshop." Let's see if we can live from the divine qualities 24 hours a day. That's the assignment. Everything else falls in around that.

I might go so far as to say, if we can live from the divine qualities even for part of the day, every day, we'd have gone a long way to fulfilling the spirit of our lightwork, in line with what the Archangel Michael says here:

"You are a living, breathing example, leader, demonstrator of incorporating the divine qualities." (2)

I want to be that. Join me. It'll cost you nothing and it promises to transform your life.

My thanks to my colleague, Kathleen Mary Willis, who hosted a class on the divine qualities, which has inspired me.

Footnotes

(1) Archangel Michael has validated that, in general, they are:

Steve: The space that I call transformative love, what dimension is it?

AAM: It is the seventh dimension.

Steve: Then what dimension is bliss?

AAM: It is between eight and nine.

Steve: And ecstasy?

AAM: Twelfth. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Jan. 20, 2016.)

(2) "Archangel Michael: You're Building the New Reality of Gaia," through Linda Dillon, Jan. 21, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/building-nova-Earth-toward-a-world-that-works-for-everyone/nova-Earth-society/archangel-michael-youre-building-the-new-reality-of-gaia/

What are the Divine Qualities?

Questioner: What are the divine qualities (or blessings and virtues)?

Federation of Light: The soul's 'Natural' Vibration' [the divine qualities] ... is of Joy, Love, Contentment, Peace ... Indeed, all manner of things that UPLIFT and not 'bring down.' (1)

Archangel Michael: The divine qualities, ... the blessings and virtues of love [are] the way in which the realms beyond the old illusion of the third dimension operate. ...

There cannot be behaviors or experiences that you think of as blame or shame or guilt or fault. None of this exists, because as you enter into the place of love, as you unite with All in love, then everything else disappears. (2)

Divine Mother: Ascension, for it is a higher, broader realm of heart consciousness ... is the anchoring and the integration of the Divine Qualities, and it is living within Universal Law and the Blessings & Virtues; the fulfilment of your dreams; acceptance and alignment with your Divine Authority and the embrace of that – the embrace that says you are ready, willing and able to do this. And it is why you have come. (3)

Q: What is their significance?

Jesus: I could not have healed, I could not have taught, I could not have stayed the path if I had not used and learned and remembered and embodied the divine qualities my parents taught me and my siblings reinforced. (4)

Divine Mother: I wish you to realize [that] the greatest gifts we have to offer thee are not simply in tangible form. ... They are the Divine Qualities. (5)

Q: How do the divine qualities fit into the Mother's Plan for the Ascension of Gaia?

Sanat Kumara: Part of the unfoldment and Ascension of Gaia is also the return and the full implementation and anchoring, alignment, with Universal Law in the consciousness of all beings, and particularly human beings.

Now, this is also related and part of the anchoring of what you have called the divine qualities, and what the Council has called the 13 Blessings and Virtues. (6)

Archangel Michael: The beginning, the middle and the end of creating Nova Earth is the incorporation of [these divine] qualities within you. (7)

Q: Where do the divine qualities or blessings and virtues come from?

Archangel Michael: When you ascend through that process, given from the Heart of God, to the place of the 13th octave [Source, the Absolute] and to the place of being far beyond your twelve planes and realms, you also receive the gifts of all of the nine angelic realms.

That is where the blessings and virtues come from, the necessities that you will bring back down to Earth to anchor in your Nova Earth and in your Nova Reality, in your fifth or seventh dimension, or higher. (8)

- (1) The Federation of Light via Blossom Goodchild, May 15, 2022," at https://goldenageofgaia.com/2022/05/15/the-federation-of-light-via-blossom-goodchild-may-15-2022/.
- (2) "AA Michael: Look within and without and see the Shift in consciousness taking place," through Linda Dillon, July 11 2012, at http://counciloflove.com/2012/07/aa-michael-look-within-and-without-and-see-the-shift-in-consciousness-taking-place/.
- (3) "Divine Mother Speaks to the Many Called to Assist Ascension, April 18, 2020," through Linda Dillon, at https://goldenageofgaia.com/2020/04/18/divine-mother-speaks-to-the-many-called-to-assist-ascension/.
- (4) "Jesus: You are Love. It is All You Have Ever Been," channeled by Linda Dillon, December 18, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/jesus-you-are-love-it-is-all-you-have-ever-been/.
- (5) "Transcript: The Divine Mother on Grace on Heavenly Blessings, April 30, 2013," at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/05/13/transcript-the-divine-mother-on-grace-on-heavenly-blessings-april-30-2013/.

- (6) "Heavenly Blessings: Sanat Kumara on the Sacred Law of Elimination," through Linda Dillon, channeled by Linda Dillon, November 19, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/transcript-sanat-kumara-on-the-sacred-law-of-elimination-november-19-2013/.
- (7) Archangel Michael: It is Time to Declare Yourself, January 28, 2013, https://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/01/29/archangel-michael-it-is-time-to-declare-yourself/
- (8) "Archangels Michael and Gabrielle on the Angelic Realm: Hour with an Angel Transcript, March 26, 2012," through Linda Dillon, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/building-nova-earth-toward-a-world-that-works-for-everyone.

The Universal Laws and the Divine Qualities

Q: What is the relation of the universal laws to the divine qualities?

Sanat Kumara: The Universal Law. Think of it as the framework which, if adhered to and followed, allows the Divine Qualities to thrive. They are completely interconnected.

So think of it as the structure. The law is the steel girders, the two-by-fours, the foundation, and the qualities are the covering and the innards of the building.

So you cannot separate them. Because when you are in the purity of adherence to the law, then you are practicing, you are living the law and the Divine Qualities. So you cannot separate these out. If you have one, you have the other.

But it is an understanding, and you are hungry — not simply you, dear heart, but all of you — you are hungry for more information. How do we construct Nova Earth in a way that truly is different?

So if you say, "Well, if we all practice the Divine Qualities, then we will be there," and to this I say, yes, you will be, but if you want to understand how it works, how those Divine Qualities reflect to the framework laid out by the Mother/Father One, then this is how. (1)

Sanat Kumara: So what you have called the Divine Qualities is the framework upon which creation, everything hangs. It is the grid upon which you come to understand how things work.

It is peculiar, is it not, that you have, as a human collective, of all breeds, such an obsession with this word "law"? You have judicial law. You have laws of mathematics, quantum physics, but you do not have, and you have not aligned fully or completely with, Universal Law.

And yet it is the starting point and it is the finishing point. And when you are in alignment with Universal Law, you come to a place of understanding of how to position yourself, particularly within time and space, how your actions, or inactions, or sense of being, can be measured and reflected. (2)

Q: I've heard it said that the divine qualities are all simply forms of love. What is it I don't understand about love that makes that so?

Jesus: So often you think of Love but you do not think of what it truly is. You describe it through an attribution of the Divine Qualities: Love is joy; Love is peace; Love is compassion; Love is truth. All this is true. Or you describe it as you love somebody, that you are loved, that you have experienced Love, that you love God, that God loves you, the Mother loves you, I love you. So there is a lot of back and forthing in this Love, isn't there?

But what is Love? What is it? When I say that I re-entered the Love, I re-entered, I re-merged with Mother/Father/One/Source, Allah, Yahweh, whatever you think of as the One. What is Love? It is Source, it is the essence, the All of the Mother/Father/One. (3)

Divine Mother: There are so many expressions, or what you would think of as elements, of the love, the joy, the sweetness, the nurturing. All of the divine qualities – hope, purity, chastity, charity – all of these are unified in love. (4)

Q: How can love, create, preserve, and destroy? How can it, at the same time, be the thing created, preserved, and destroyed?

Divine Mother: [Love] is a multipurpose tool. It is a multipurpose energy that can be whatever is required. So there are times when it is the dissolver; there are times when it is the building block; there are times when it is the glue. (5)

Q: The soul never changes, though everything else does. Do the divine qualities ever change, Mother?

Divine Mother: Not only are we, and you may frame that as the Father and I – the One – not only are we constant and never-changing, we are also ever-changing, expanding, growing, creating [depending on what aspect of her we look at].

But the fabric, the constructs, the concepts, the divine love, the sacred blessings and virtues, what you think of as divine qualities or values, practices, these do not change. (6)

Archangel Michael: Divine qualities do not ebb and flow, come and leave. (7)

Q: What is the difference between a feeling and a divine state?

Steve Beckow: A feeling state, on the one hand, seems to occur within us, inside our body. I usually associate it with a region of the body (head, stomach, heart). It can be pleasant or unpleasant or a mixture of both.

A divine state seems to be all around us, enveloping us, saturating us throughout. It happens, and is perceived as happening, within a wider area than just inside our body.

It's as if I'm contained within it or enveloped by it. I'm immersed in peace, drowned in love, filled with bliss, carried away by ecstasy.... They're uniformly beyond pleasant; they're exquisite. (8)

- (1) "You're Ready to Build Societies in Adherence with the Law," through Linda Dillon, April 23, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/04/sanat-kumara-youre-ready-to-build-societies-in-adherence-with-the-law/.
- (2) Loc. cit.
- (3) "Good Friday Message From Jesus Sananda," April 10, 2020, at https://goldenageofgaia.com/2020/04/10/good-friday-message-from-jesus-sananda/.
- (4) "Transcript of the Divine Mother: Density is Unloving Emotion; Love is Lightness of Being," through Linda Dillon, March 6, 2015, at https://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/transcript-of-the-divine-mother-density-is-unloving-emotion-love-is-lightness-of-being/.
- (5) Loc. cit.
- (6) "Universal Mother Mary explains the last Universal Law in our series: the Law of Constancy and Continuity," Dec. 4, 2014, through Linda Dillon, at https://counciloflove.com/2013/12/universal-mother-mary-explains-the-last-universal-law-in-our-series-the-law-of-constancy-and-continuity/.
- (7) Archangel Michael: It is Time to Relinquish Any Feeling Less than Love Part 2/2," through Linda Dillon, Sept. 7, 2014, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/

 $\underline{2014/09/07/archangel-michael-it-is-time-to-relinquish-any-feeling-less-than-love-part-22/.}$

(8) Steve Beckow, "Three Levels of Reality," Aug. 25, 2020, at https://goldenageofgaia.com/?p=312821; "Shifting Attention from Structure to Flow," Aug. 14, 2020, at https://goldenageofgaia.com/?p=312055; "In What Better Space Could We Be?" July 24, 2020, at https://goldenageofgaia.com/?p=311973.

Working with the Divine Qualities

Q: How do I achieve divine qualities like balance and grace?

Lao Tzu: Balance is not what you are aiming to achieve; it is who you are. (1)

Divine Mother: Grace is not something you need to retrieve; it is integral to who you are. (2)

Q: How do we work with the divine qualities?

Sanat Kumara: Practicing your Divine Qualities. When you are practicing certain qualities, they more naturally align with different laws, with different thoughts, with different expressions, shall we say, of God, of One. But it is already within you.

So working with the law is being in your heart consciousness and being discerning, considering.

You live in a world, and I distinguish myself, not the planet, but a world, that has become very busy. Now, it is not that you need to judge busy as good or bad; it is indifferent. But in that busyness, busy is a very good place for ego to live.

And in that busyness, and in the feeling of self-imposed struggle — because busyness is a form of struggle; it is not a sense of smoothness; it is self-imposed — you do not take time always to discern: Is what I'm doing directing me to my core essence and to my Self, to my I Am presence and the I Am presence? It is as simple as that.

When you stop and ask the question, the guidance is already there. Because your beauty, your heart, your soul, however you conceive of that knowingness is divinely intelligent. It knows. And in the knowing, you can shift from busy to being, and being does not mean that you are not taking action and building Nova Earth. You are, and it is well under way, I am happy to say. (3)

St. Bernadette: Each of you is truly facing this dilemma: Where is the proof? This is one of the reasons why this Council of Love has asked you to focus on the Blessings and Virtues, because the proofs, the landmarks, the markers have become internal rather than external.

This is something new for you to learn; this is a quality of Nova Being. You are learning a new way of measuring proof and it is from within. (4)

Q: It seems like there are a million and three interpretations of these laws and values.

Divine Mother: Are there a million and three interpretations of these laws and values? Yes, because [the interpretations] are unique to you. But let us also suggest to you, just like us, that you are constant while you are also never changing and ever changing. (5)

Q: When you explained what happened to me in the heart opening on March 13, 2015, you said I had created spaciousness. Can you explain "spaciousness" please?

Archangel Michael: You (and this does apply to the collective) have done your, can we say, your homework, your due diligence. What we mean by this is simply, think of it in spatial reality, time and space reality: you have created the space for this [energy of love] to, not only pass by you like a passing breeze or a rain [on March 13, 2015], but to anchor within you because there is a sense of this spaciousness within thee. ...

When one is clinging to core issues, to fear, to lack, to limitation – you know the list – there is not that sense, not only of spaciousness, but of acceptance, allowance, readiness and even permission. Because as you know, we continually say that we will never override your free will.

So, if the will, either actively or subconsciously, is actually choosing to still engage in the issues or the drama, then although we are standing at readiness and still penetrating you, that open door is not there. (6)

Q: How do the divine qualities fit into social action. Can you give us an example?

Divine Mother: It is the western women saying [in relation to gender equality], particularly to the western men, being in a male-dominated society and culture is not acceptable.

What you have created economically, financially, politically, culturally is not loving; it is not reflective of the Divine Qualities; it does not take into account the potential and the sanctity of each life. (7)

Archangel Michael: Who, upon this wondrous planet, has been hiding in the shadows or edging out, or in the limelight and is ready? ... Who has been diligent and practiced patience and fortitude and stamina, and anchored the divine qualities? Who is it that is prepared to do this? Well, it is the lightworkers. (8)

- (1) Lao Tzu in *The New You. Emerging into the Brilliance of Humanity's Heart Consciousness.* Port St. Lucie: Council of Love, 2013.
- (2) The Divine Mother in *The New You. Emerging into the Brilliance of Humanity's Heart Consciousness*. Port St. Lucie: Council of Love, 2013.
- (3) "Sanat Kumara: You're Ready to Build Societies in Adherence with the Law," through Linda Dillon, April 23, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/04/sanat-kumara-youre-ready-to-build-societies-in-adherence-with-the-law/.
- (4) St. Bernadette on Prudence in Linda Dillon, *The New You: Emerging into then Brilliance of Humanity's Heart Consciousness.* Port St. Lucie: 2013, 189.
- (5) "Transcript: Universal Mother Mary Discusses the Law of Completion and Continuity on Heavenly Blessings, December 3, 2013," through Linda Dillon, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/universal-mother-mary-discusses-the-law-of-completion-and-continuity-on-heavenly-blessings-december-3-2013-2/.)
- (6). Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, March 13, 2015.
- (7) Divine Mother, "Mother Mary Discusses the Divine Quality of Hope-the Foundation, the Bedrock of Human Existence," through Linda Dillon, February 21, 2013, at http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existence/

(8) "Transcript: Archangel Michael – On Mastery and Leadership, April 16, 2015," through Linda Dillon, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/04/25/transcript-archangel-michael-on-mastery-and-leadership-april-16-2015/

The Divine Qualities and Relationship

Q: How is all this affecting relationships?

Divine Mother: As you are emerging into your sacred self in, shall we say, clearer balance of your Divine Masculine and Feminine, as that is occurring, sacred partnership, sacred unions are taking on the Divine Qualities. (1)

Hilarion: It is in the expression of the higher qualities of the spirit that the greatest changes will be noticed. People throughout the world are beginning to release the dualistic expressions and behaviors and are expressing that which they feel emanating from within their heart. The more kindness that is expressed and shown towards one's fellows, the more this movement will expand exponentially.

This practice also includes the expression of kindness towards one's self, for without the acceptance of self, the love of self, the love for others and the expression of it, is impeded. This is the work that is currently in process. The layers of self negation and denial of one's divinity are being peeled away and each individual is beginning to see and acknowledge the beauty and light that resides within their being.

When people can see and recognize their own beauty and divine qualities, they begin to recognize these qualities in their brothers and sisters and soon a shift, a change, is created within the dynamics of all relationships.

Those who have been weary of seeing the lower qualities being expressed in the individuals around them will discern the changes as they occur and soon a greater majority of people on the planet will embrace this way of expression.

They will turn away from modes of behavior and expression that have been manifested as acceptable in the entertainment industry and realize that is not the way for them any longer. The people will seek those venues where the magnificence of the human spirit is being portrayed and as more people do this, it will be seen as the true way and heartily embraced. (2)

Q: What might we practice in our relationships to bring them more into alignment with the divine qualities?

Archangel Michael: Practice laughter, sweetness, kindness, and consideration - in the very specific sense and in the greatest sense. So you are truly to each other and within yourself not only demonstrating but receiving the blessings of someone who is living the divine qualities.

So anything that is not of the divine qualities, anything that is not of kindness, consideration and love, you say to each other, you have the permission and consideration to say, not in words of anger, not in words of fear, but in a way that says that doesn't feel to me like love.

So it is not being on high alert, but in a comfort zone, a harmony that is comfortable enough that you can say 'That does not feel right.' The same way that, when you are sharing a bed, you say 'Can you move a little?' And of course you do.

And it is in that way that you accommodate each other so that the bodies, minds and spirits can meld and come together. (3)

- (1) "The Divine Mother: Is Sacred Union Part of the Plan? Dear Hearts, It is the Plan Part 1/2, July 11, 2014," through Linda Dillon, at https://counciloflove.com/.
- (2) Hilarion via Marlene Swetlishoff, February 2, 2014.
- (3) Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Nov. 19, 2013.

Living from the Divine Qualities

Q: Can you tell me some of the benefits of living from the divine qualities?

Archangel Michael: As you are embracing the divine qualities, as you are living the divine qualities, that automatically jumps you in your own evolutionary track back to the light. (1)

Sanat Kumara: My sacred purpose [is] to attend to Gaia and to all of you as you move through this Ascension portal, as you come to fully remember and claim the glory of who you are. And you do so in simplicity by claiming the law, by aligning with the law and the divine qualities. When you do this, my beloved family, you cannot go wrong. (2)

Q: What do you want from lightworkers in regards to the divine qualities?

Archangel Michael: You are a living, breathing example, leader, demonstrator of incorporating the Divine qualities. (3)

Divine Mother: So let me say what you are doing is you are anchoring the peace, the knowingness, the truth of who you are in that substantial, Natural Self in physicality, not so you can leave, but so that you can stay. Those who are not anchoring the divine qualities, who are literally saying "No, thanks. I'm not interested" can't stay. They will not have enough substantiality, materiality, wisdom to hold the vibration to be able to physically exist on Nova Earth. So this is a very important part of what you are doing. (4)

Q: Divine Mother, can you describe some of what you've been doing in your work with us and the divine qualities, in light of Ascension?

Divine Mother: I have filled you with my Tsunami of Love. I have filled you with my Divine Qualities. I have renewed you until you are like my beloved Yeshua, reborn, brand new, in your Christ self. (5)

Divine Mother: Now, have we, in this what we shall call Ascension phase, have we gifted or added energies to enhance this drive and this knowing? We most certainly have. And it began with my gift of clarity. Too often, beloveds, you are given a gift, tangible and intangible, of something like clarity. And you will work with it for what we see as a very brief time. And then you lay it aside as if it is a child's toy

that you have tried out and become bored with. And yet what we are doing is reigniting the very divine qualities that will not only assist but catapult you in the Ascension process, individual and collective.

I hear so few of you saying to me, "Mother, I call upon your gift of clarity this day." Now, it is already embedded within you, like so much else. So it is simply pulling it up, into your heart — yes, in tandem with me, with One, with the realms that you don't even know of — of choosing to access it.

I have given you my gift of grace, which is the crowning glory of all divine qualities, for you to simply call upon. You — and I speak in generalizations to the people of the world — you do not believe fully and completely that you are the embodiment of grace. And it still speaks to part of your fragmentation. Yes, you are working on your integration. But what do I do? What do we do to enhance this knowing, again, this internal and external pulling up of the grace? (6)

Divine Mother: My tsunami of love ... is not even at its crescendo, at its highest peak as yet. So I am adding these divine qualities in your human form so that you may deal with the increased energy that I am about to give you. And there is no stopping the tsunami. Let me be clear about this. You have asked to ascend as one, and you will, but there is work to be done.

Now, some of you have joined me in the ecstasy of bliss, and I thank you. I thank you for letting me in. You say, "Well, Mother, I knew you were coming in anyway." That is true, but there are many who resist. (7)

- (1) "Archangel Michael: Back to the One with the Speed of Love," through Linda Dillon, July 15, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/07/archangel-michael-back-to-the-one-with-the-speed-of-love/.
- (2) Sanat Kumara in "Universal Mother Mary explains the last Universal Law in our series: the Law of Constancy and Continuity," through Linda Dillon, at https://counciloflove.com/2013/12/universal-mother-mary-explains-the-last-universal-law-in-our-series-the-law-of-constancy-and-continuity/
- (3) "Archangel Michael: You're Building the New Reality of Gaia," through Linda Dillon, Jan. 21, 2013, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/building-nova-Earth-toward-

- <u>a-world-that-works-for-everyone/nova-Earth-society/archangel-michael-youre-building-the-new-reality-of-gaia/</u>
- (4) Archangel Michael in "Transcript ~ Archangel Michael: Peace is Love, May 11, 2017," Channeled by Linda Dillon, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ https://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ https://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ https://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ https://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/ <a hre
- (4) "The Divine Mother: We are Creating a New Species of Humans," through Linda Dillon, July 12, 2014, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/07/12/the-divine-mother-we-are-creating-a-new-species-of-humans/.
- (5) Archangel Michael in "Transcript ~ Archangel Michael: Peace is Love, May 11, 2017," through Linda Dillon, Channeled by Linda Dillon, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/transcript-archangel-michael-peace-is-love-may-11-2017/.
- (6) "The Divine Mother: We are Creating a New Species," ibid.
- (7) "The Divine Mother: The Table is Set; You are Ready for the Dance, September 18, 2104," through Linda Dillon, at https://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/09/20/the-divine-mother-the-table-is-set-you-are-ready-for-the-dance/.
- (8) "The Divine Mother: We are Creating a New Species," ibid.

Applying the Divine Qualities

Q: Current enlightenment thinking is that a human being is only capable of mastering one of the divine qualities in a lifetime. Is that correct?

Archangel Michael: Human beings, particularly those in the higher vibrations, [are] learning to hold all the divine qualities and to be operating from all the divine qualities at once. (1)

Linda Dillon: These Divine Qualities expand infinitely. So the more we are in that energy, the bigger and bigger it gets. (2)

Q: How do we relate to those committing acts of violence and extremism and still align with the divine qualities?

Divine Mother: Beloveds, you are at a critical intersection, and the chaos and the mayhem upon my beloved Gaia is extreme. Now, is this part of the plan? Does all this hatred, envy, control, greed, pain, have need to come to the surface? Yes. Do you need to love it? No. You need to love the essence, the divinity, of all beings. Yes, including the humans...

Think of the core issues of your old Third Dimension and of humanity that have clung to that reality. It is all at the surface. Let me elaborate somewhat on what Germain has said to thee. You have not ever been appointed as judge or jury for each other or for humanity, for the human race. To commit yourself to ascension, to love, to the gift of grace I have given you nearly two weeks ago, the divine qualities! It cannot — it does not — include judgment.

Of course you are discerning. You have been given magnificent emotional, mental, and even ego acuity. I am not asking you to deny your intelligence, dear hearts. But what I am asking is to step back and send the love! Because it is not the judgment. It is only the love that can heal, transmute and transform these energies of chaos that are rampant...

So you are not loving the atrocities. You are loving the divinity in the collective. You are recommitting who you are and who they are, you are loving them into wholeness. Are you doing it alone? Most certainly not. That is why I have been flooding you with my energies and my gifts! Embrace the grace. (3)

Divine Mother: Now, let us talk about this group [who resist] — some who are oblivious. They do not truly concern me, for in many ways they are the most

effortless to penetrate. But those who are despondent, depressed, in despair, or who say, "I don't feel anything," you are praying for relief and then telling me, which I have no objection to, exactly how this relief will take place, what it will look like, what the tangible form will be, how it will look and smell and taste, and I want to give you more than that. (4)

Divine Mother: Oh, there are some recalcitrants.... There is a firm acknowledgment that which, in terms of the very structures I just referred to, that do not work, do not reflect the divine qualities — kindness, gentleness, generosity — that hurt people; that very often the systems that have been created supposedly to help people are the very systems that hurt people.

And there is this growing intellectual and heart consciousness understanding that change is a must. And that is being translated into a shift of what is occurring. (5)

- (1) Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Jan. 4, 2019.
- (2) Linda Dillon in "St. Bernadette Discusses Prudence: The First Gift of the 13 Blessings & Virtue," through Linda Dillon, Feb. 11, 2013, at http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/st-bernadette-discusses-prudence-the-first-gift-of-the-13-blessings-virtues/.
- (3) "The Divine Mother: Beloveds, You are at a Critical Juncture Part 2," through Linda Dillon, channeled by Linda Dillon, July 24, 2014, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/07/25/the-divine-mother-beloveds-you-are-at-a-critical-juncture-part-2/.
- (4) "The Divine Mother: We are Creating a New Species of Humans," through Linda Dillon, July 12, 2014, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/07/12/the-divine-mother-we-are-creating-a-new-species-of-humans/.
- (5) "Archangel Michael: What Would Love Do?", channeled by Linda Dillon, May 1, 2014, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/05/06/archangel-michael-what-would-love-do/.